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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Electric Utility
Spencer, 1A 51301

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the Municipal Electric Utility of the City of
Spencer, lowa (the Utllity) as of December 31, 2005 and the related statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is fo express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Utility, as of December 31, 2005, and the respeclive changes in its
financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 20, 2006 on our consideration of the Utility's internal contrel over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal contral over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information an pages 4
through 7 and 24 through 26 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management,
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

(s st 7

March 20, 2006



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The purpose of Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to provide the reader with
an introduction to the financial statements. Our discussion and analysis of the Municipal Electric
Utility (Utility) of the City of Spencer, lowa’s financial performance provides an overview of the
Utility’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2005.

The following information should be read in conjunction with the financial staternents and the
accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this section.

2005 Financial Highlights
The Utility delivered approximately 159,258,000 kilowatt hours (kWh) of electricity to its retail
customers in 2005 compared to approximately 152,289,000 kWh in 2004.

The Utility’s net assets decreased $453,462 to 344,580,974 as a result of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The balance sheet includes the Utility’s assets and liabilities and provides information about the
nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors
(liabilities).

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets reports all revenues and expenses
incurred during the fiscal year.

The statement of cash flows presents cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net changes in cash
resulting from operating, noncapital financing, capital and related financing and investing
activities,

The notes to the financial statements provide the required disclosures and other information that
is necessary to give the reader a complete understanding of the data provided in the statements.
The notes present information about the Utility’s accounting policies, material risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies and subsequent events.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Condensed Financial Information
The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and indicators for

management, monitoring, and planning.

Condensed Balance Sheets

2005 2004
CUITENE ASSEES (.uvereerinieeeiircor i e e erateesrecsn e aensasnesans sarnesens $13,772,356 516,375,395
Capital assets - net of depreciation ..........ccceoviviciciinciee 31,502,348 26,974,973
NORCUITENL ASSELS ..eovueeeiereiesreneissrerssersssesssmtassesessimessserssnseses 14,833,523 17,735,532
Deferred COSES .ovvvimmmnmnrrs i e s e 168.559 182.884
Total assets $60,276,786 $61,268,784
Current Habilities ....ccovvivceieie e rr e e e es s s $ 2,370,812 3 1,954,348
Long-term debt ..o 13,325.000 14.280.000
Total liabilities 15,695,812 16,234,348
Investments in capital assets - net of related debt ................ 19,502,542 17,969,702
B T 1T (=1 A 2,467,350 2,456,092
Unrestricted .......oocv e e e s 22,611,082 24.608.042
Total net assets 44.580.974 45.034.436
Total liabilities and net assets $60,276,786 $61,268,784

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2005 2004

RE 1T R (e o e L PR % 8,726,584 5 7,456,330
L 12T TS 153,923 207.941

Total operating revenue 8,880,507 7.664.271
POWEr SUPPLY COSLS ..vviierereerrciceeeveee e see e s e e e araes e e 6,542,381 4,668,272
Distnibution system MAaintenance ........ccvooeeeverveerrsierseeresrene 1,417,250 1,013,513
Depreciation and amortization .......c.cccvvvivecenenceerinenseseee e 1,726,613 1,601,919
Customer service and administration .............cccoeevvecveemrersnnee 724 907 939,922

Total operating expenses 10411151 8,223.626
Operating income (loss) (1,530,644) (559,355)
TDEIESE TNCOME ... eeeceeieieiceeie e eca ctaeeese e aeen e esaamenen seeens 830,385 608,605
Interest EXPEnse ... e (356,410) (380,587)
Other income (EXPenses) - DNEL ....c.ccvvveieevveveeveeereecercaereeseeaes 603.207 474,898

Total non-operating income 1,077,182 702,916
Change in net assets (453,462) 143,561
Net assets - beginning of year ..o vceeievicccvseseecicieene, 45.034.436 44 890.875
Net assets - end of year $44,580,974 £45,034,436



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Financial Analysis
The Utility’s total assets decreased by approximately $992,000 during 2005.

The Utility’s gross revenues increased in 2005 compared to 2004 by approximately $1,216,000
or 15.81%.

Power supply costs have increased in 2005 compared to 2004 by approximately $1,874,000.
Total operating expenses increased by approximately $189,000 due to increased expenses related
to distribution maintenance. Depreciation and amortization also increased by approximately
$125,000, Customer service and administration expense was lower due to payroll overheads
being charged to the respective payroll account instead of administration expense.

Total operating loss generated in 2005 was $1,530,644 compared to $559,355 in 2004.

Utility non-operating income (expense) in 2005 resulted in an additional $374,266 of income
compared to 2004 due to additional leases of utility facilities and a higher rate of return on
invested funds.

The Utility’s net assets decreased $453,462 for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to
an increase of $143,560 for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Budgetary Highlights

In accordance with the Code of Towa, Spencer Municipal Utilities annually adopts a combined
budget on the cash basis for the Municipal Electric Utility, Municipal Water Utility, and
Municipal Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa.

The original adopted combined budget for 2005 was approximately $25,500,000. This was an
increase of $12,600,000 over the previous year budget. The budget was amended once during
2005 to allow for increased expenditures of approximately $2,200,000.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Net capital assets increased by approximately $5,264,000 due to construction work in progress
related to the Council Bluffs Energy Center Unit 4 (CBEC #4), and distribution construction.

During August of 2002, the Board of Trustees entered a joint ownership agreement for the
construction of the Council Bluffs Energy Center Unit 4. The Utility will become a 1.07%
owner which is 8.453 megawatts. The Utility’s total ownership interest is estimated at
£13,600,000. The Utility’s construction work in progress totaled approximately $7,017,000 at
year end.

On February 1, 2004, the Board of Trustees authorized the issuance of $8,750,000 in Electric
Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 of which 38,270,000 was outstanding at December 31, 2005. The
proceeds from these bonds will be used to finance a portion of the construction of the Council
Bluffs Energy Center Unit 4 discussed above. The balance of the bond proceeds fund at
Decemnber 31, 2005 was approximately $2,112,000. In addition, $6,010,000 remained
outstanding at December 31, 2005 from Electric Revenne Bonds, Series 2000.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Economic Factors

The Utility continues to experience positive growth in retail sales: however, power supply costs
have increased at a greater rate during 2005, The primary reason for the increase in power
supply costs is the conversion to market based pricing between NIMECA and MidAmerican
Energy Company. In order to cover more of its baseload capacity, the Board of Trustees has
entered into a joint ownership agreement for the construction of the CBEC #4. It has also signed
a letter of intent to become a 6.25% participarit of the Wisdom 2 combustion turbine generator.

The Utility completed a Cost of Service Study during 2004. The purpose of the study was to
assign operating and capital costs to the various rate classes and verify that rates were adequate
to cover those costs. The Board of Trustees adopted rate adjustments based on the study
effective March 1, 2005. The utility also adopted an Energy Cost Adjustment (ECA}) for all
consumption beginning September 7, 2005. The ECA is calculated monthly and is designed to
recoup the additional costs of power supply from the consumer.

Contacting the Utility’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to present our citizens, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Utility’s finances and operating activities. If you have any questions or require
additional information please contact the Finance Supervisor, 712 Grand Ave, PO Box 222,
Spencer, Towa 51301,



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMEER 31, 2005

ASSETS
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 4):
Plant in service ............ R ¥ L B4 4 7 gy ¥
Less accumulated deprematnon wemerererasasasasbennnnennnnrnnnsnnnsnnnes 20,457,420
Plant in service - net 24,249 783
Construction work in progréss ..o e 7,252,585
CAPITAL ASSETS - NET $31,502,348
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Noncurrent investments:
Board designated (Notes 2 and 3) ..o 3,813,114
Resfricted (Notes 2 and 8) .. 4,447,784
Note receivable - City of Spencer (Note 6) . - 26,625
Note receivable - Municipal Commumcatlons Ut|||ty (Note 7) 6,546,000
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 14,833,523
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted (Note 2) .. 1,181,598
Board designated (Notes 2 and 3) venrarnreranereeceessnerereemaee 10,304,700
Restricted (Notes 2 and 8) .. 131,201
Consumer deposits ........... 19,510
Accounts receivable - net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $27,000 .. 880,128
Unbilled usage 445,265
Materials and supplles mventory 575,137
Fuel inventory .. 134,270
PrepaymMEnis (... e rr e e e e e e e e eeen 69,041
Note receivable - City of Spencer (Note 8) .......cccovviicviviceeenen. 26,625
Notes receivable - employees (NoOte B) .ccoveevieee e 4,881
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 13,772,356
DEFERRED COSTS:
Unamortized bond issue costs ... 168,559
TOTAL ASSETS $60,276,786

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
QF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BALANCE SHEET - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Revenue bonds payable - less current installments (Note 8)........

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current installments of revenue bonds payable (Note 8) .............
Accounts payable
Accrued wages, vacations, and benefits ...
Accrued iNtErest ... e enes
CONSUMET dEPOSIES ..iiiiiiee e e et rrer e e s ae s e arace e e
Actrued BXPENSES ..o e e e e e
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 15} ...ocvivviiiennens

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Invested in capital assets - net of related debt ...
Restricted - bond funds (Note 8) .......ccceeiviiiiin e

Unrestricted

NET ASSETS

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

LIABILITIES

$ 955,000
1,064,261
235,784
51,627
19,510

44 630

19,602,542
2,467,350
22611082

$13,325,000

2,370,812

15,605,812

44 580,974

$60,276,786



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIG UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

OPERATING REVENLUES:
Residential .
Commermal
Public authorities
SaAlES fOr FESAIE v i ive e e er e e s e e st e neren s e vt a s
Interdepartmental
Penalties
Miscellaneous

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Generation and transmission:
Neal #4 fuel and generation .............c e crccresere e e rersvensnenann
Purchased power
0] T
Distribution
Depreciation and amortization
Customer operations
General and administrative . e ateeerieeermresesasesesereearereeisnsnnenan
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE) AND TRANSFERS:
Interest income on investments .. .-
Interest income from Municipal Communlcatlon Utlllty (Note 7)
Economic development payments ...
Leased facilities (Notes 11 and 15)

Interest expense .........cccccceeeeeeene.

Loss on plant retwements

Transfers to City - in lieu of property taxes (Note 6)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
AND TRANSFERS - NET

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

$ 3,411,518
4,711,413
485,530
131,646
118,125
14,487

7,810

859,868
5,623,356
59,157
1,417,250
1,726,613
248,886
476,021

516,258
314,127
{138,209)
1,117,688
(356,410)
(2,192)
(374,080)

See Accompanying Notes lo Financial Slalements
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$ 8,880,507

10,411,151

(1,530,644)

1,077,182

(453,462)

45,034,436

$44,5680.974



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, 1OWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers ..

Cash paid {0 SUPPIIEIS .. e e s s

Cash paid to employees ..........
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAFPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions paid for economic development ...
Transfer to City - in lieu of property tax .

NET CASH USED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets ......ccceccviiicrir
Revenue bond principal repayment ... ocivirr e
Payments received from leasing of facilities .........cccccvveiiincciiiniin e,

Interest paid ..

L CASH USED BY CAP|TAL AN[) RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Payments received on note receivable - City of Spencer .....c.ccccvecvvrvvrrsrcnrarenn,
Payments received on notes receivable - employees ........ccvmenisn e
Payments received on note receivable - electricheat ...

Loan advances for notes receivable - employees ...
Payments received on note receivable - Communtcatlons Ut|||ty

Proceeds from redemption of investments .........ocoeee v

Purchase of investments ..
Interest received from mvestments cveeaas
Interest received from note receivable - Communlcatlons Uh[lty

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR ..o

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

See Note 2 for reconciliation of statement of cash flows to balance sheet.

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
1

$ 8,440,573
(6,808,630)

{1.411,940)
220,003

(138,209)
(374,080)
(512.289)

(6,241,855)

{920,000)
1,488,260

{360,163)

(6,033,758)

26,625
8,421
482

(5,352)
504,000
6,757,714

(4,386,330)
516,258
627,705
4,049,523

{2,276,521)

13,894,020

$11,617,499



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, [OWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
COPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations ............. -
Adjustments to reconcile i mcome from operatlons to net cash prowded by
operating activilies:

Deprecialion ...
BN g1 ) (.1 (1] 5 TS

(Increase) decrease in:

ConsumMer deposits ......ueeevieieier ettt
ACCOUNES reCaIVABIE ...
Unbilled USAGE .....ooovv ettt e e
Materials and supplies INVENLONY ......c.oooeeei e
LU Y= 0 (e
Prepayments ... et e e s

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable ..

Accrued wages, vacaitons and benet'ts

Consumer depaosits ..

ACCTUE OXPENSOS iieviiieeiiie v e e ererir et tra v reer e oe e e e arseeeeresara s reaeaenene e nenaaes

Total adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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$ (1,530,644)

1,712,288
14,325

1,217
(358,352)
(81,665)
52,517
28,300
(3,200)

398,294

8,549
(1,134)
(20,492)

1,750,647

$__220.003



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization and Basis of Accounting
The Municipal Electric Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa (Electric Utility or Utility}
operates as an independent unit of the City of Spencer and is managed, along with the
Municipal Water Utility and the Municipal Communication Utility of the City of Spencer,
lowa, by a five member Board of Trustees.

The Utility follows the accounting practices prescribed through the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission for regulated utilittes and proprietary fund accounting for
governmental entities under accounting principles generally accepfed in the United
States of America.

For financial reporting purposes, the Utility has included all funds. The Ultility has also
considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable, and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
Utility are such that exclusion would cause the Utility’s fihancial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set
forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria
include appeinting a voting majority of an crganization's goverrting body, and (1) the
ability of the Utility to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potentiat for the
organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the
Utility. It was determined that the Utility has no component units.

The Utility is not considered to be a component unit of the City of Spencer for financial
statement purposes. An audit of the City of Spencer for the year ended June 30, 2005
has been completed and is filed under separate cover.

The Utility's financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows.

In reporting the financial activity of its enterprise fund, the Ulility applies all applicable
GASB pronouncements as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless these prenouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure.

The Utility dislinguishes operaling revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with the Utility’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Utility are charges to customers
for sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.

13
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets are staled at original cost when first devoted to public service.
Currently, such costs include labor-related expenditures, such as payroll taxes,
pensions, and other fringe benefits and administrative costs for labor related to the
construction of new electric facilities. In addition, net interest costs on construction
debt are capitalized. During 2005, the Utility capitalized interest expense of $192,880,
which equals total interest expense of $291,264 less interest income from invested
proceeds of $98,384.

Under a joint ownership agreement with other ufilities, the Electric Utility has a 1.215%
undivided interest in a 640 MW electric generation station known as George Neal
Generating Station Unit No. 4. The Electric Utility's 1.215% ownership interest in this
plant represents a total investment of $4,892 420 included in utility plant in service with
$3,458,023 included in accumulated depreciation. Operating costs associated with
this plant and depreciation are reflecfed in the statement of income.

Under a joint ownership agreement with other utilities, the Electric Utility has a 1.07%
undivided interest in an electric generation station known as Council Bluffs 4, which is
currently under construction with expected comgpletion in 2007. Additional information
is included In Note 5.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged fo capital assets.
Rouline maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis. Current depreciation expense is
approximately 3.44% of the original cost of depreciable electric plant in service.

The estimated useful lives used to depreciate assels by class are as follows:

Infrastructure 20 - 33 years
Buildings and improvements 20 years
Equipment 5 years

. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Uility expects fo collect from
outstanding balances. The Ultility provides for probable uncollectible amounts through
a charge ta earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of
the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after the
Utility has used reasonable collection efforis are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. Changes in the valuation
allowance have not been material tc the financial statements.

. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. The average cost method is
used for determining the cost of materials and supplies inventory. Inventories are
recorded as an expenditure or, if applicable, capitalized when consumed.

14



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

E.

Unamortized Bond Issue Costs
Unamortized debt issue costs are amortized aver the life of the debt on a straight-line
basis which approximates the effective interest method.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assetls and liabilities in the financial
statements. Net assels invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of
any long-term debt used for acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets
and increased by unspent proceeds. Net assets are reported as restricted when there
are limitations imposed on their use through extemal restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

The Utility's policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assels are available.

. Income Taxes

The Electric Utility is exempt from federal and state income taxes because it is a
governmental entity organized under the provisions of Chapter 388 of the Code of
lowa.

Revenues and Unbilled Usage

Revenues are based on bhilling rates, which are applied to customers’ consumption of
electricity. The Utility records estimated unbilled revenue at the end of accounting
periods. Revenues eamed, but nof yet billed at December 31, 2005, totaled $445,265.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptlions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results may differ from those estimates.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND NONCURRENT INVESTMENTS

The Utility's deposits in banks at December 31, 2005 were entirely covered by federal
depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories
to insure there will be no loss of public funds.

The Utility is authorized by statute and Board of Trustees' approval to invest public funds in
obligations of the United States government, its agencies, and instrumentalities;
certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at federally insured lowa depaository
institutions; and the lowa Public Agency Investment Trust.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND NONCURRENT INVESTMENTS -
Continued

The Utility had investments in lowa Public Agency Investment Trust which are valued at an
amortized cost of $6,973,624 pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of
1840.

Interest Rate Risk - The Utility's investment policy limits the investment of operating funds
{funds expected to be expended in the current budget year or within 15 months of receipt)
in instruments that mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may
be invested in investments with maturities longer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be
consistent with the needs and use of the Uility.

Credit Risk - The Utility's investment in the lowa Public Agency Investment Trust is
unrated.

The Utility considers all highiy liquid investments with an original malurity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows.

Investments are recorded at cost which approximates market. Adjustments are made to
cost for any premium or discount, which is amortized over the maturity of the investment.
Adjustments are also made to account for the change in accrued interest on respective
investments.

Reconciliation of the Utility’s cash and cash equivalents and noncurrent investments is as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents:

Board designated ..o veeeveieeeee et sree s e nemenenene e 910,304,700
=TS 1 Tl 1= o ORI 131,201
UNrestricied v e 1,181,598
Total cash and cash equivalents 11.617.499
Noncurrent investments:
Board designated ......coocoeiiee e e 3,813,114
S e T o [ PO 4,447 784
Total noncumrent investments 8.260.898
Total cash and cash equivalents and noncurrent investments $19,878,397

3. BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS

The Board of Trustees of the Utility has designated certain funds to be placed in a
contingency reserve account. These funds, which are from unrestricted net assets, are
being designated for contingencies such as a natural disaster and cannot be expended
without Board approval.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

3. BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS - Continued
The Board of Trustees of the Utility has designated certain funds to be placed in a
replacement and construction reserve account. These funds, which are from unrestricted
net assels, are being designated for replacement of property, plant, and equipment and for
new construction. These funds cannot be expended without Board approval.

Assets of the funds as of December 31, 2005 are summarized as follows:

Replacement

and
Contingency Construction
Reserve Reserve Total
Cash and cash equivalents .......cccccccveveeerenn.. 51,236,814 %9,067,886 $10,304,700
Noncurrent investrnents ..........ccceeiviiveiieennee. 3,813,114 3,813,114
Total $1,236,814 $12,881,000 $14.117.814

4. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Beginning  Additions and Deletions and Ending

Balance Transfers In Transfers Out Balance
Capital assels nol being depreciated:
Land ..oocvveieeieeie e ectaeeeeee. B 86,092 $ 86,092
Construction in progress ........... 2 667,581 $4.865303 3 (280,299} 7,252 585
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 2,753,673 4,865,303 {280,299) 7,338,677
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure .......cooeeeeeeeeeeee 42.085,703 1,580,250 {20,596) 43,645,357
Buildings and improvements ... 741,481 24,395 765,876
Equipment ..., 5,182,053 52,206 (34,401} 5,209,858
Total capital assets being
depreciated 48,019,237 1.656,851 (54,997) 49,621,091
Less accurmnulated depreciation ... 23,797 937 1,712,288 (52.805) 25.457.420
Totat capital assets being
depreciated - net ........cceeeieiireenn 24,221,300 {55,437} (2.192) 24,163,671
Capital assets - net $26.974.973 4800866 35 (282491)  §31,502,348

5. NOTES RECEIVABLE - EMPLOYEES
The Board of Trustees has authorized the Electric Ulility to purchase personal computers
for interested employees. The employees repay the Utility through payroll withholding
over a maximum of 24 months. No interest is charged on the unpaid balance.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, ICWA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

DECEMBER 31, 2005

6. TRANSFERS IN LIEU OF PROPERTY TAXES/NOTE RECEIVABLE -

CITY OF SPENCER

By resolution of the Board of Trustees, voluntary transfers in lieu of property taxes are
made to the City of Spencer, lowa. Currently, transfers approximate 5% of gross sales,
less actual property taxes paid (on the George Neal Generating Station Unit No. 4} and
returned to the City of Spencer, lowa. Additionally, funds declared to be surplus can be,

and have been, transferred to the City.

During 19896, the Utility advanced the City $355,000, of which $266,250 was a loan, to
perform public improvements in the area of West 11" Street in Spencer. The City
reimburses the Utility in equal payments of $26,625 without interest, payable annually on
July 1. The balance of this note at December 31, 2005 was 53,250.

7. NOTE RECEIVABLE - MUNICIPAL COMMUNICGATIONS UTILITY

The Board of Trustees has approved an $8,000,000 line of credit for the Municipal
Communications Utility for use in start-up and construction costs related fo bringing the
Communications Utility into operation. At December 31, 2005, $8,000,000 has been
advanced and $6,546,000 remains outstanding. Outstanding balances bear interest at a

rate of 4.5% per annum.

8. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the year ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Series 2000 revenue bonds ...... $ 6,450,000 $440,000 § 6,010,000  $465,000
Series 2004 revenue bonds ...... 8,750,000 480,000 8,270,000 490,000
Total revenue bonds 15,200,000 920,000 14,280,000  $955,000
Current installments of revenue
bonds payable .........cccveiennen, {920.000)  $(35.000) {955,000}
Revenue bonds payable - [ess
current installments $14,280,000  $(35,000)  $920,000 $13,325,000
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, ICWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Centinued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

8. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES - Continued

The Series 2000 and 2004 revenue bonds require annual principal payments, due
December 1, and semiannual interest payments, due June 1 and December 1. Interest
rates throughout the term of the bonds range between 1.4% and 5.75%. The bonds are
secured by the future net revenues of the Utility. Long-term debt matures and bears
interest as follows:

Series 2000 Series 2004

Principal Interest Principal Inferest
2006 o oeooeeerereimiene $ 465,000 % 334,867 % 490,000 % 284,537
2007 e a e 420,000 309,282 495,000 275,963
2008 ..o 515,000 282,342 510,000 265,567
2009 i ene e eanamn e 545,000 254,018 520,000 253,583
2010 . 575,000 224 042 535,000 239,802
2011 -2015 ..o 3,420,000 602,710 2,935,000 928,600
2016 =« 2018 oo 2,785,000 306,485
Total $6,010,000 $2,007271 £8.270,000 $2,554,537

The bend resolutions provide certain covenants relating to the collection, segregation, and
distribution of revenues from customers; places certain restrictions on future borrowing
and leasing or disposition of assets; and requires that minimum insurance coverage be
maintained.

Resfricted Funds

Outstanding Elecfric Revenue Bonds are collateralized by the revenue of the Utility and
the various special funds established by bond covenants. The covenants provide that the
revenue of the ulility is to be used first to pay operating and maintenance expenses of the
systemn and second to establish and maintain the special funds. Remaining revenues may
then be used for any lawful purpose. The covenants also contain provisions which, among
other items, restrict the issuance of additional revenue bonds unless the special funds
noted above contain the required amounts and certain financial ratios are met. The Utility
is in compliance with all significant financial requirements as of December 31, 2005.

At December 31, 2005, the special funds consisted of the following:

Cash and
Cash Noncurrent
Equivalents [nvesiments Total
Bond SInking FUNd ......cccocvvmvecnimiminmrncsrennnenes. $ 131,201 $ 131,201
Bond Reserve FUNG .....coovvmeeiivere e, $1,584,191 1,584,191
Bond Improvement Fund ... 751,858 751,958
Restricted - bond funds 131,201 2,336,149 2,467,350
Unexpended bond proceeds ........ccceceiieee. 2111835 2111,635
Total $ 131201 $4.447,784  $4.578.985
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES - Continued

Monthly deposits into two bond sinking funds are required to establish the amount
necessary o pay the next installments of principal and interest on the 2000 and 2004
Electric Revenue Bonds. Bond reserve funds for the 2000 and 2004 Electric Revenue
Bonds equaled the required balance at December 31, 2005; therefore monthly deposits
into the fund are not currently required. These funds may be used to pay principal and
interest payments when insufficient funds are available in the sinking fund.

The bond improvement fund balance at December 31, 2005 equaled the minimum balance
required; therefore monthly deposits into the fund are not currently required. These funds
are to be used first for principal and interest payments when insufficient funds are
available in the sinking and reserve funds and second for extraordinary unbudgeted
maintenance expenses or system repairs, renewals and replacements.

RATE MATTERS

Rates of the Utility are established by the Board of Trustees and, as a municipal system,
are not subject to the regulation of the Utilities Division of the Department of Commerce of
the State of lowa.

NUMBER OF METER CONNECTIONS

The number of meter connections totaled 5,866 at December 31, 2005.

LEASES

The Utility leases electrical generation capacity of a jet turbine generator and its share of
the Neal 4 plant under operating leases to other utilities or their associations. The
revenues from such leases are classified as leased facilities. The Wility's investment in
these facilities is included in capital assets in service and is set forth as follows:

Jet turbing generator ... $2,522,868
Neald plant ... e e 4,892 420
Total 7,415,288
Less accumulated depreciation .......coccceevevveveceveneenn. 5,620,592
Net investment $1,794,696
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, ICWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

LEASES - Continued

The lease of the Neal 4 plant is a long-term commitment based on capacity. The amount
is determined by formula based on usage and totaled $308,092 in 2005. The leases of the
jet turbine generator are both by noncancelable lease and a variable lease determined by
capacity and totaled $155,953 in 2005. The following is a schedule of future minimum
renfals on noncancelable operating leases on the jet turbine generator as of December 31,
2005:

2008 e 65,000
2008 e e 65,000
20 e e 65,000
Total minimum lease payment receivable $ 325,000

The Utility leases bandwidth, property, and building space to the Water Utility and
Communications Utility. The revenues from such leases are classified as leased facilities
and totaled $409,421 in 2005. The leases are 20-year variable leases based on
bandwidth and space utilized. There is no amount receivable at December 31, 2005.

The Utility leases building space from the Water Utility. The expense from the lease is
classified as operating expense. The lease is a menthly lease based on building space
utilized and totaled $8,000 in 2005. There is no amount payable at December 31, 2005.

RETIREMENT SYSTEM

IPERS

The Utility contributes to the lowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS) which is
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of
lowa. |PERS provides retirement and death benefits which are established by state
statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, PO Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa, 50306-
9117.

Plan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual covered salary and the
Utility is required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements
are established by State statute. The Ultility’s contributions to IPERS for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were $85,741, $75,592, and $75,874, respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each year.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

RETIREMENT SYSTEM - Continued

Employees Pension Plan

All full-time employees of the Electric Utility who have completed six months of continuous
employment and are 21 years of age are eligible to participate in a Money Accumulation
Pension Plan administered by Copeland Plan Services. The Plan is a defined contribution
plan of the money purchase type, intended to qualify under Internal Revenue Service
Code Section 401(a), funded by a combination of employee and employer contributions.
Employees electing to participate are requirad to contribute 2% of their compensaticn, and
they may contribute an additional amount of not less than 1% and not more than 10% of
their compensation. The Utility contributes 8% of the employees’ compensation for all
employees electing to participate.

The Electric Utility's contribution to the Money Accumulation Pension Plan for 2005 totaled
$117,913.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Electric Utility is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
These risks are covered by the purchase of commercial insurance. The Utility assumes
liability for any deductible and claims in excess of coverage limitations. Settled claims
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years. The Ulility, as is typical in the electric power industry, does not insure
its transmission lines due to the high cost of such coverage.

RELATED PARTIES

The Electric Utility, Water Utility, and Communications Ulility of the City of Spencer, lowa
exchange services in the normal course of business.

Two members of the Board of Trustees hold non-controlling interests in a financial
institution where the Utility maintains cash balances.

Additional related party items are included in Notes 7 and 11.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, [OWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

15. COMMITMENTS

During 2003, the Electric Utility entered into an agreement to purchase a 1.07% ownership
in the generating facilities at Council Bluffs 4. The plant is expected to be in production in
2007. The commitment of Spencer Municipal Ulilities in order to maintain its percentage
of ownership is expected to approximate $13,600,000. Approximately $7,017,198 had
been paid or accrued resulting in a future commitment of approximately $6,582,802.
Future payments by the Utility would be required as construction progresses.

During 2004, the Electric Utility entered into negotiations to purchase a 6.256% ownership
in the generating facilities at Wisdom 2. The Spencer Municipal Utilities' commitment is
expected to approximate $2,400,000. Based on a letter of intent to acquire this ownership,
leased facilities revenues of $197,111 were allocated to and realized by the Utilities in
2005.

During 2005, the Electric Utility provided a letter of support ta continue funding lowa Great
Lakes Corridor of Opportunity at a level of $12,500 per year for four years.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY

OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BUDGETARY CCMPARISON SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Receipts:
Municipal Electric Utility ..
Municipal Water Ulility ..

Municipal Communlcatlons Ut|||ty ...............

Combined receipis

Dishursements, including capital outlay:
Municipal Electric Utility ..
Municipal Water Utility ..
Municipal Communlcahons Utlllty
Combined disbursements, mcludlng
capital outlay

Transfers in e v e e
Transfers out ...

Transfers - net

Combined excess (deficit) of receipts
over disbursements

Combined beginning net assets .........c.ccceoee..

COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS

Total revenues and transfers in ......vcevviiveeeenn,
Total expenditures and transfers oul ..............

Excess (deficit) of receipts over disbursements

Beginning balance - January 1 ........................

Ending balance - December 31

Budgeted Final to
Amounts Actual
Actual Einal Variance
$11,612,324
1,004,784
5 464 .667
18,171,776 $17.8337,918 $ 333,857
16,260,229
1,106,739
4,885,445
22 252 413 27,692,982 5,440,579
1,700,000 {1,700,000)
{1,700.000) 1,700,000
(4,080,638} (9,855,074) 5,774,436
29 804,339 32,449 450 {2.645111)
$20,723.701 $22,594,376  $ 3,129,325

Original Final
Budget Budget
$18,291,830 §$19,537,918
27,194,185 20,392,902
{8,902,355) (9,855,074)
32,449 450 32,449,450

$23.047,000 $22.504.376

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2005

Revenues:

Municipal Electric Utility ..............ccc.oeeeeee
Municipal Water Utility ...
Municipal Communications Utility ..............

Combined revenues

Expenditures/expenses;

Municipal Electric Utility .....c.ccocvvvieiiieee

Municipal Water Utility ................
Municipal Communications Utility

Combined expenditures/expenses

Net

Combined beginning net assets .........ccceveee

COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS

See Accompanying Independenl Auditors' Repart
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Accrual
Cash Basis Adjustments  Accrual Basis
$11612,324 §& (783,744) $10,828,580
1,084,784 190,966 1,285,750
5,464 667 842,210 6,306,877
18,171,775 249,432 18,421,207
16,260,229 (4,978,187) 11,282,042
1,106,739 {24,405) 1,082,334
4 885 445 (558,845) 4 326,600
22252413 (5,561,437) 16,690,978
(4,080,638) 5,810,869 1,730,231
29,804,339 22,013,094 51,817,433
525723701 $27.823,963  §53,547,664



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATICON - BUDGETARY REPORTING

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

NOTE 1

The budgetary comparison is presented as Required Supplementary Information in accerdance
with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 41 for governments with
significant budgetary perspective differences resulting from nof being able to present budgetary
compariscns for each individual utility.

In accordance with the Code of lowa, Spencer Municipal Ulilities annually adopts a combined
budget on the cash basis for the Municipal Electric Utility, Municipal Water Utility, and Municipal
Communications Ulility of the City of Spencer, lowa following required public notice and hearing.
The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed
procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized and appropriations lapse at year-end.

Formal and legal budgetary confrol is based upon nine major classes of disbursements, known
as functions, not by fund. These functions are public safety, public works, health and social
services, culture and recreation, community and econcmic development, general government,
debt service, capital projects and business type activities. All Ulility disbursements are included
in business type activities function and are required to be budgeted. During the year, one
budget amendment increased budgeted disbursements by $2,198,807. This budget
amendment is reflected in the final budgeted amounts.

NCTE 2

The receipts and disbursements, including capital outlays, on the cash basis for each Utility are
summarized as follows:

Municipal Municipal Municipal
Electric Water Communications
Utiliby Utility Litility Combined
RECRIPIS .veccrerreccieecirrrierine e s e s eene $11,612,324 $ 1,094,784 % 5,464,667 $18,171,775

Disbursements, including capital outlay .. 16,260,229 1,108,739 4,885 445 22,252,413

Excess (deficit) of receipts over

disbursements {4,647,905) (11,955} 579,222 (4,080,638)
‘Beginning net assets .......coocvvevievnccnnns 24,526,302 4,109,749 1,168,288 29,804,339
ENDING NET ASSETS $10.878,397 §$ 4007794 § 1747510 $25723,701
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WmreER, ST1AaVvE & Co.,LLP
dswéiﬁ'saf FOulilie Hecountants

1316 West 18th Sireet 1004 21st Stree1 #4
PO. Box 175 P.O. Box |87
Spencer, Iowa 51301-0173 Milford, Jowa 51351
Phone 712-262-3117 Phone 712-338-2488
FAX 712-262-3159 FAX 712-238-2510

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Electric Utility
Spencer, |1A 51301

We have audited the financial staternents of the Municipal Electric Wility of the City of Spencer,
lowa (the Utility) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, and have issued our report
thereon dated March 20, 2006. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporiing

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Ulility's internal control over financial
reporting in order to determing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements and nof to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the intemal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in
relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider
to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Mafters

As part of obtaining reascnable assurance about whether the Utility's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinicn. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reporied under Governmental
Auditing Standards.
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Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility's operations for the year
ended Decermnber 31, 2005 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures
performed during our audit of the financial statements of the Utility. Since our audit was based
on tests and samples, not ali transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were
necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended
to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials
and employees of Spencer Municipal Utilities, the citizens of the City of Spencer and other
parties to whom Spencer Municipal Utilities may report. This report is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

(Lo AT

March 20, 2006
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SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Part I: Findings Related to the Financial Statements

No matters were noted.
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SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has been adopted by
the Board. The maximum deposit amounis stated in the resolution were not exceeded
during the year ended December 31, 2005.

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended December 31, 2005 did not
exceed the amounts budgeted in the business type activities function.

Questionable Expenditures - No expenditures were noted which did not meet the
requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General's opinion dated
April 25, 1979.

Travel Expenses - No expenditures of Utility's money for travel expenses of spouses of
Utility's officials or employees were noted.

Business Transaclions - Business transactions between the Utility and Utility officials
and employees are detailed as follows:

Name, Title and Business Connection Transaction Description Amount

Tom Howe, Board Member
Part owner of H & N Chevrolet Maintenance & Repairs $ 2,035

Dave Hultgren, Board Member
Owner, Northwest Equipment Maintenance & Repairs $ 451

Rachel, Rebecca, and Ryan Florke
Children of employee Cleaning Services $1,725

In accordance with Chapter 362.5(10) of the Code of lowa, the transactions with Board
Member Howe do not appear to represent conflicts of interest since competitive bids
were accepted in regard to maintenance and repairs. The transactions with Board
Member Huligren and for cleaning services do not appear fo represent conflicts of
interest since totaf transactions with each were less than $1,500 during the vear.

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of Spencer Municipal Utilities’ officials and
employees is in accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should
be reviewed annually to insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Board Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been
approved in the Board minutes but were not.

Revenue Bonds - As of December 31, 2005, the Utility had complied with all significant

financial requirements related to its Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 2000, and Electric
Revenue Bonds, Series 2004.
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SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Partll: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

11-1-05 Deposits and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and
investment provisions of Chapter 12{B) and 12{c) of the Code of lowa and the Utility's
investment policy were noted.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SFENCER, I1OWA,



WimnteEr, S1AavE & Co.,LLP
futfﬁ'sd’ 2 C#ccountanés

1316 West 181h Sircet 1004 21st Street #4
PO, Box |75 P.O. Box 187
Spencer, Towa 51301-0175 Milford, lowz 51351
Phane 712-262-3117 Phong 712-338-2488
FAX 712-262-3159 FAX 712-338-2510

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Water Utility
Spencer, 1A 51301

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the Municipal Water Ulility of the City of
Spencer, lowa (the Utility} as of December 31, 2005 and the related statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Utility's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasanable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Utility as of December 31, 2005, and the respeclive changes in its
financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Audiling Standards, we have also issued our report daled
March 20, 2006 on our consideration of the Ulility's internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison infermation on pages 34
through 36 and 51 through 53 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Govermmental Accounting Standards Board. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management,
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

(k. oG 75

March 20, 2006
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The purpose of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to provide the reader with
an introduction to the financial statements. Our discussion and analysis of the Municipal Water
Utility (Utility) of the City of Spencer, lowa’s financial performance provides an overview of the
Utility’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2005.

The following information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the
accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this section.

2005 Financial Highlights
The Utility delivered approximately 460,302,000 gallons of water to its retail customers in 2005
compared to approximately 458,580,000 gallons in 2004.

The Utility’s net assets increased by $203,416 to $7,142,798 as a result of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The balance sheet includes the Utility’s assets and liabilities and provides information about the
nature and amounts of investments in resources {assets) and the obligations to creditors
(liabilities).

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets reports all revenues and expenses
incurred during the fiscal year.

The statement of cash flows presents cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net changes in cash
resulting from operating, noncapital financing, capital and related financing and investing
activities.

The notes to the financial statements provide the required disclosures and other information that
1s necessary to give the reader a complete understanding of the data provided in the statements.
The notes present information about the Utility’s accounting policies, material risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies and subsequent events.



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Condensed Financial Information
The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and indicators for
management, monitoring, and planning,

Condensed Balance Sheets

2005 2004

CUITENE BSSELS ..eivvvvereerrerersrrssrsssresressrrassmssrsesressessssressases revesens $ 3,390,846 $ 3,449,187
Capital assets - net of depreciation .........ccccecccreerrecrererreenn. 4,607,674 4,208,924
Noncurrent assets and deferred Costs .vviviiimincnieniiinneenne 1,014,320 1.017.350
Total assets $ 9012840  § 8675461
Current Habilities .....oocveovrervrcee e e erereesseeesre e eenenens 3 651,042 5 456,079
Long-termn debt ..ot cae e e 1.219.000 1,280,000
Total liabilities 1.870.042 1,736,079
Investments in capital assets - net of related debt ................. 3,341,994 2,886,468
Restrioted ..o e e 194,108 192,696
L0501y T 1« 3.606.696 3,860,218
Total net assets 7.142.798 6,939,382
Total liabilities and net assets $ 9,012 840 8 8675461

Condensed Statements of Revenues. Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2005 2004
Sales Of WALEL ..vivvivicri i e s $ 865,532 3 850,090
OHHET ..o e e e sas o s saser s e nns 38,022 32,202
Total operating revenue 903,554 882,292
System operation and maintenance .....c....ceceeeecererereecerereeens 611,618 552,210
Depreciation and amortization ..........cccccerueccvrnierrereesecereennee. 264,258 266,184
Customer service and administration ..........coeeccencennsnan. 114,187 164.668
Total operating expenses 990,063 983,062
Operating income (loss) (86.509) (100,770}
INEETESE IMCOTIIE ..eveieieietieetieee e s e e e s saecsassse e s ercene e sreeanesae 122,255 54,370
INTEEESt EXPETISE wneeeerermrreesereasee e e srmesereanesnn e e armssesesmenesnan (47,979) (53,690)
Other income (EXPense) - MEL ....ccoovecvversirsresreoneonesaressrerens 215,649 (12,573)
Total non-operating income (expense) 289,925 (11,893)
Change in net assets 203,416 (112,663)
Net assets - beginning of year. ... 6,939,382 7,052,045
Net assets - end of year $ 7,142,798 3 6,939,382
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Financial Analysis
The Utility’s total assets increased by approximately $337,000 during 2005.

The Utility’s gross revenues increased in 2005 compared to 2004 by approximately $21,000 or
2.40%.

Total operating expenses increased in 2005 compared to 2004 by approximately $6,000 due to
increased expenses related to the water plant operation and maintenance. Customer service and
administration expense was lower due to payroll overheads being charged to the respective
payroll account instead of administration expense.

Total operating loss generated in 2005 was $86,509 compared to $100,770 in 2004.

Utility non-operating income {expense) resulted in additional income of $300,594 during the
year ended December 31, 2005 compared to 2004. Contributions in aid of construction totaled
£249,138 for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to $29,654 for the year ended
December 31, 2004,

The Utility’s net assets increased $203,416 for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to a
decrease 0of $112,663 for the year ended December 31, 2004,

Budgetary Highlights

In accordance with the Code of lowa, Spencer Municipal Utilities annually adopts a combined
budget on the cash basis for the Municipal Electric Utility, Municipal Water Utility, and
Municipal Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa.

The original adopted combined budget for 2005 was approximately $25,500,000. This was an
increase of $12,600,000 over the previous year budget. The budget was amended once during
2005 to allow for increased expenditures of approximately $2,200,000.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Net capital assets increased by approximately $399,000 due to construction of water mains
during the year ended December 31, 2005.

$1,280,000 remained outstanding at December 31, 2005 from Water Revenue Bonds, Series
2001. The bonds mature in 2021.

Economic Factors

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Utility experienced a net income due to
significant contributions in aid of construction. Because of the net operating loss, the Board of
Trustees adopted a rate adjustment effective with consumption beginning February 28, 2006.
This rate adjustment will increase annual revenues by approximately $115,000.

Contacting the Utility’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to present our citizens, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Utility’s finances and operating activities. If you have any questions or require
additional information please contact the Finance Supervisor, 712 Grand Ave, PO Box 222,
Spencer, Iowa 51301.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2005

ASSETS
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 4).
Plant in service .......... vverrrmsrnrresnerevssernrssnsnrsrerersnneenes 9 9,873,618
Less accumulated depremahon 5,268,936
PLANT IN SERVICE - NET 4,604,682
Construction Work in progress ...o.cocvvcecevreeeceevrcece e e ersee e 2,992
CAPITAL ASSETS - NET $ 4,607,674
NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Noncurrent investments:
Board designated (Notes Z2and 3) ........ccccce i 1,000,000
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted (Note 2} .. 805,680
Beard designated (Notes 2 and 3) ............................................ 2,098,106
Restricted (Notes 2and 7) ..o e e 194,108
Accounts receivable - net of allowance for doubtful accounts
OF $4,000 oot e e 190,069
Unbilled USAZE ..o icriri i e 34,011
Materials and supplies iINVENtory .........cccccre s 61,787
PrepaymMEnts ... e s an s 7.185
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 3,390,846
DEFERRED COSTS:
Unamortized bond issue COStS ..., 14,320
TOTAL ASSETS $ 9,012,840

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Stalements
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
QOF THE CITY OF SPENCER, I10WA
BALANCE SHEET - Continued

DECEMBER 31, 2005
LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Revenue bonds payable - less current installments (Note 7)........ $ 1,219,000
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Current instaliments of revenue bonds payable (Note 7) enrnnnna $ 61,000

Accounts payable ... 544 317

Accrued wages, vacatlons and benefts 30,165

Accrued interest . 8,352

Accrued expenses 7,208

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 651,042

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 14) .....................

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,870,042
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt .........ocoovivieeennns 3,341,994
Restricled - bond funds (Note 7) ..o 194,108
Unrestricted ...t e e ameeen 3,606,696
TOTAL NET ASSETS 7,142,798
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 9012840

See Accompanying Notes fo Financial Staterments
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

OPERATING REVENUES:

Residential and commercial .....c..oocoovoieeeeeececeee e
ReENtal INCOIMIE ..ot e e et eeee e rere e
MISCEIIANEOUS ...eeeeee et re e e ee e e e eranns

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Treatment .
Dlstrlbutlon

Deprecratlon and amortlzatlon ...................................................

Customer operations ..

General and admlmstratlve

TOTAL CPERATING EXPENSES

LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE) AND TRANSFERS:
Interest income on investments ...
Contributions from developers ... cecc i
Leased facilities (Not& 10) ..o e

Interest expense .........

Transfers to City - in lieu of property taxes (Note 6)
TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
AND TRANSFERS - NET

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR ..o

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Slalements
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$ 865,532

32,400
5,622

$ 903,554
350,868
260,750
264,258
48,670
65,517

990,063

(86,509)
122,255
249,138
10,803
(47,979)
(44,292)

289,925

203,416

6,939,382

3 7,142,798



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received fTom CUSIOMEIS .......cccviarierir e e e e s $ 961,726
Cash paid 10 SUPPHEIS ..o et et e bt s b s (290,377)
Cash paid 10 8MPLOYEES ......cococei e {251,158)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY CPERATING ACTIVITIES 420,191
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfer to City - in lieu of property tax ..o, (44 292
NET CASH USED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES (44.292)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets ..., (412,646)
Revenue bond principal repayment ... (58,000)
Payments received from leasing of faciliies ........cccccv v 10,803
gLz o A o= Lo SO OO O S (50,266)
NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (510,109)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from redemption of investments ... 1,001,806
Purchase of inVestments ... e e e s {1,000,000)
Interest received from INVESIMENES ... 122,255
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 124,061
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (10,149)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR .....cocoiiieieniceene 3.107.943
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 3 3,007,794

See Note 2 for reconciliation of statement of cash flows to balance sheet.

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, {OWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss from Operations ... e

Adjustments fo reconcile loss from operations to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation ..
Amortization .
{Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable ..
Unbilled usage .
Materials and supplles mventory

Prepayments ..................................................'I.'Z.'I.'I.'Z.'ZIII.'IIIIZ.'Z.'f ............

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable ..

Accrued wages, vacahons and beneﬂts
ACCIUBT BXPENSES ....ooiii it eeee e e rre e e e st ee e e s s e e e e s ennren

Total adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL,

AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets ..o
Contributions from develOpers ..o

Cash paid to acquire and construct capital assets

See Accompanying Notes fo Financial Statemenls
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263,034
1,224

58,383
(211)

(8,351)

(1,629)

193,703
2,247

(1.700)
506,700

$ 420,191

$ (661,784)
249138

$ (412,646)



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005

1. SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization and Basis of Accounting
The Municipal Water Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa (Water Utility or Utility)
cperates as an independent unit of the City of Spencer and is managed, along with the
Municipal Electric Utility and the Municipal Communication Utility of the City of
Spencer, lowa, by a five member Board of Trustees.

The Utility follows the accounting practices prescribed through the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission for regulated utilities and proprietary fund accounting for
governmenlal entities under accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

For financial reporting purposes, the Utility has included all funds. The Utility has also
considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable, and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
Utility are such that exclusion would cause the Utility's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has set
forth criteria to be considered in defermining financial accountability. These criteria
include appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and {1) the
ability of the Ulility to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the
Utility. It was determined that the Ultility has no component units.

The Utility is not considered to be a component unit of the City of Spencer for financial
statement purposes. An audit of the City of Spencer for the year ended June 30, 2005
has been completed and is filed under separate cover.

The Utility's financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows.

In reporting the financial activity of its enterprise fund, the Utility applies all applicable
GASB pronouncements as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before
November 30, 1988, unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Cpinions, and Accounting Research
Bulleiins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure.

The Utility distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with the Utility’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Utility are charges to customers
for sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Capital Assets and Depreciation
Capital assets are stated at original cost when first devoted to public service.
Currenliy, such costs include labor-related expenditures, such as payroll taxes,
pensions, and other fringe benefits and administrative costs far labor related to the
construction of new water facilities. In addition, net interest costs on construetion debt
are capitalized.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capilal assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis. Current depreciation expense is
approximately 2.66% of the original cost of depreciable water plant in service.

The estimated usefut lives used to depreciate assets by class are as follows:

Infrastructure 40 years
Buildings and equipment 5 - 20 years
Vehicles 5 years

C. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Utility expects to collect from
outstanding balances. The Ultility provides for probable uncollectible amounts through
a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of
the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after the
Utility has used reasonable collection efforis are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit fo accounis receivable. Changes in the valuation
allowance have not been material to the financial statements.

D. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. The average cost method is
used for determining the cost of materials and supplies inventory. Inventories are
recorded as an expenditure or, if applicable, capitalized when consumed.

E. Unamortized Bond Issue Costs
Unamortized debt issue costs are amortized over the life of the debt on a straight-line
basis which approximates the effective interest method.

F. Net Assets
Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the financial
statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the cutstanding balance of
any long-term debt used for acquisition, construction or improvement of those assefs
and increased by unspent debt when there are limitations imposed on their use
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of
other governments.

The Utility's policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

G. Income Taxes
The Water Utility is exempt from federal and state income taxes because itis a
govemmental entity organized under the provisions of Chapter 388 of the Code of
lowa.

H. Revenues and Unbilled Usage
Revenues are based on billing rates, which are applied to customers' consumption of
water. The Utility records estimated unbilled revenue at the end of accounting periods.
Revenues earmed, but not yet billed at December 31, 2005, totaled $34,011.

. Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounling principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Acfual results may differ from those estimates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND NONCURRENT INVESTMENTS

The Utility's deposits in bank at Decamber 31, 2005 were entirely covered by federal
depositary insurance or by the Stale Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories
to insure there will be no loss of public funds.

The Utility is authorized by statute and Board of Trustees’ approval to invest public funds in
obligations of the United States government, its agencies, and instrumentalities;
certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at federally insured lowa depository
institutions; and the lowa Public Agency Investment Trust.

The Utility had investments in lowa Public Agency Investment Trust which are valued at an
amortized cost of $1,309,859 pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of
1940.

Interest Rate Risk - The Utility’s investment policy limits the investment of operaling funds
{funds expected to be expended in the current budget year or within 15 months of receipt)
in instruments that mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may
be invested in investments with maturities longer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be
consistent with the needs and use of the Utility.

Credit Risk - The Utility's investment in the lowa Public Agency Investment Trust is
unrated.

The Uttlity considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months
or less to be cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND NONCURRENT INVESTMENTS -
Continued

[nvestments are recorded at cost which approximates market. Adjustments are made to
cost for any premium or discount, which is amortized over the maturity of the investment.
Adjustments are also made to account for the change in accrued interest on respective
investments.

Reconciliation of the Utility's cash and cash equivalents and noncurrent investments is as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents:

Board designated ...........cc oo enrn e 2,098,106
(2=t (0] 2=« [N 194,108
UNTESITCEEA ....onseeeeieci ettt r et e et r e e e s e e e e e pe e een 805,580
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,097,794
Noncurrent investments:
Board designated ... e 1,000,000
Total noncurrent investments 1,000,000
Total cash and cash equivalents and noncurrent investments $ 4.097,794

3. BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS

The Board of Trustees of the Ulility has designated certain funds to be placed in a
contingency reserve account. These funds, which are from unrestricted net assels, are
being designated for contingencies such as a natural disaster and cannot be expended
without Board approval.

The Board of Trustees of the Utility has designated certain funds to be placed in a
replacement and construction reserve account. These funds, which are from unrestricted

net assets, are being designated for replacement of property, plant, and equipment and for

new consfruction. These funds cannot be expended without Board approval.
Assets of the funds as of December 31, 2005 are summarized as follows:

Replacement

and
Contingency Construction
Reserve Reserve Total
Cash and cash equivalents ................cccviveeeee. 3 469,106 $1,6209,000 $2,098,106
Noncurrent investments .........ccoceevrvevevvnierens 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total $ 460106 32,626,000 $3,098,106
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, |OWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Beginning  Additions and Deletions and Ending
Balance Transfers In~ Transfers Qut Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land .o icnrcmnccnccnninnem e $ 259,344 $ 259,344
Construction in progress ........... $ 2992 2,992
Tolal capital assets not being
depreciated 259 344 2992 262,336
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure .......coeeveeeveveeeiens 5,104,415 625,291 5,729,706
Buildings and equipment .......... 3,700,153 33,501 3,733,654
Vehicles ..o 150,914 150,914
Total capital assels being
depreciated 8,955,482 658,792 9,614,274
Less accumulated depreciation ... 5,005,802 263,034 5,268,936
Total capital assets being
depreciated - net ... 3,949,580 385,758 4,345.338
Capital assets - net $42089724 3 398750 4,607,674

SEWER, STORM WATER, AND SOLID WASTE

The Electric utility bills and collects sewer, storm waler, and solid waste revenues for the
City of Spencer. The resuiting receivable and comesponding payable are recorded under
the Water Utility. The City of Spencer reimburses the Electric Utility for these services.

TRANSFERS IN LIEU OF PROPERTY TAXES

By resolution of the Beard of Trustees, voluntary transfers in lieu of property taxes are
made to the City of Spencer, lowa. Currently, transfers approximate 5% of gross sales.
Additicnally, funds declared to be surplus can be, and have been, transferred to the City.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

7. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the year ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reduclions Balance One Year

Series 2001 revenue bonds ...... $1,338,000 $ 58,000 $1.280,000 $61,000
Total revenue bonds 1,338,000 58,000 1,280,000 $61,000
Current installments of revenue
bonds payable ......................... (58,000} $ {3.000) {61,000)
Revenue bonds payable - less
current installments ... §1280000 $_(3000) §$58.000 $1.219.000

The Series 2001 revenue bonds require annual principal payments, due December 1, and
semiannual interest payments, due June 1 and December 1. |nterest rate throughout the
term of the bonds is 3.84%. The bonds are secured by the future net revenues of the
Utility. Long-term debt matures and bears interest as follows:

Series 2001
Principal Interest
P60 U TRURUS. S -3 1016 [0 B -t R ="K |
2007 e r— e ae e e e e e s rnann 63,000 46,560
b0 B {0 I OO 395,000 151,010
2016 = 2020 oottt et e ee e et e e e e eraaeraaaas 477,000 67,567
Total $1,280,000 § 440,664

The bond resolutions provide certain covenants relating to the collection, segregation, and
distribution of revenues from customers; places certain restrictions on future borrowing
and leasing or disposition of assets, and requires that minimum insurance coverage be
maintained.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

7. NONCURRENT LIABILITIES - Continued

Restricted Funds

Outstanding Water Revenue Bonds are collateralized by the revenue of the Utility and the
various special funds established by bond covenants. The covenants provide that the
revenue of the utility is to be used first to pay operating and maintenance expenses of the
system and second to establish and maintain the special funds. Remaining revenues may
then be used for any lawful purpose. The covenants also contain provisions which, among
other items, restrict the issuance of additional revenue bonds unless the special funds
noted above contain the required amounts and certain financial ratios are met. The Utility
is in compliance with all significant financial requirements as of December 31, 2005.

At December 31, 2005, the special funds consisted of the following:

Total
Bond Sinking FUNd .......c.cooe v ecreremcnensnre e rene s nrensreseneeneeees B 13,108
Bond Reserve FUND ...ttt e e 115,000
Total § 104,108

Monthly deposits into the bond sinking fund are required to establish the amount
necessary to pay the next installments of principal and interest. The bond reserve fund at
December 31, 2005 equaled the required balance; therefore monthly deposits into the
fund are not currently required. These funds may be used to pay principal and interest
payments when insufficient funds are available in the sinking fund.

8. RATE MATTERS
Rates of the Utility are established by the Board of Trustees and, as a municipal system,
are not subject to the regulation of the Utilities Division of the Department of Commerce of

the State of lowa. On January 11, 2006, the Utility approved a rate increase for all
consumption beginning on February 28, 2006.

9. NUMBER OF METER CONNECTIONS

The number of meter connections totaled 5,570 at December 31, 2005.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, I0WA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Conlinued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

10. LEASES

1.

The Utility leases building space to the Electric Utility and Communication Utility. The
revenues from such leases are classified as leased facilities. The leases are monthly
leases based on building space utilized and totaled $9,974 in 2005. No amount is
receivable at December 31, 2005.

The Utility leases bandwidth and building space from the Electric Utility. The expense
from such leases is classified as operating expense. The lease is a 20-year variable lease
based on bandwidth and space utilized and fotaled $23,035 in 2005. No amount is
payable at December 31, 20085.

RETIREMENT SYSTEM

IPERS

The Utility contributes to the lowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS) which is
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of
lowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits which are established by state
statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financlal
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
report may be cobtained by writing to IPERS, PO Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa, 50306-
9117.

Plan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual covered salary and the
Utility is required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements
are established by State statute. The Utility’s contributions to IPERS for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were $14,133, $12,341, and $10,195, respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each year.

Employees Pension Plan

All full-time employees of the Water Utility who have completed six months of continuous
employment and are 21 years of age are eligible to participate in a Money Accumulation
Pension Plan administered by Copeland Plan Services. The Plan is a defined contribution
plan of the money purchase type, intended to qualify under Internal Revenue Service
Code Section 401(a}, funded by a combination of employee and employer contributions.
Employees electing to parlicipate are required to coniribute 2% of their compensation, and
they may contribute an additional amount of not less than 1% and not more than 10% of
their compensation. The Ulility contributes 8% of the employees’ compensation for all
employees electing to participate.

The Water Utility"s contribution to the Money Accumulation Pension Plan for 2005 totaled
$19,222.
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13.

14.

MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Water Utility is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
These risks are covered by the purchase of commercial insurance. The Utility assumes
liability for any deductible and claims in excess of coverage limitations. Settled claims
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past
three fiscal years.

RELATED PARTIES

The Electric Utility, Water Utility, and Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa
exchange services in the normal course of business.

Two members of the Board of Trustees hold non-controlling interests in a financial
institution where the Utility maintains cash balances.

Additional related party items are included in Note 10.

COMMITMENTS
During 2005, the Water Utility entered into a construction contract totaling approximately

$322,000 for maintenance to the distribution system to be completed in 2006. No
amounts have been paid or accrued as of December 31, 2005.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Budgeted Final to
Amounts Aclual
Actual Final Variance
Receipts:
Municipal Electrie Uility .. rrerrerneeeneeee 311,612,324
Municipal Water Utility .. rererr 1,094,784
Municipal Communlcatlons Ut1I|ty 5,464 667
Combined receipts 18,171,775 $17,837,918 $ 333,857
Disbursements, including capital outlay:
Municipal Electric Utility .........cccoveiienen. 16,260,229
Municipal Water Utility ..........ccooicniinne 1,106,739
Municipal Communications Utility .......c...e.e.. 4,885,445
Combined disbursements, including
capital outlay 22,252 413 27,692,992 5,440,579
TranSfers iN cocoveoveerrerre e eeeceenr e 1,700,000 (1,700,000)
Transfers Ut ......ccocvvcvevcve s {1,700,000) 1,700,000
Transfers - net
Combined excess (deficit) of receipts
over disbursements (4,080,638) {9,855,074) 5,774,436
Combined beginning net assets ..................... 20,804,339 32.449.450 (2,645, 111)
COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS $25,723,701 $22,594376  $_3,129325
Original Final
Budget Budget
Total revenues and transfersin ..........coceeeeeee... $18,291,830  $19,537,918
Total expenditures and transfers out ............... 27,194,185 29,392,992

Excess {(deficit} of receipts over disbursements (8,902,355) {9,855,074)

Beginning balance - January 1 .......cccerveenneae 32449450 32,449,450

Ending balance - December 31 $23,547.005 $22,594,376

See Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Revenues:

Municipal Electric Utility ..........c.ccccoerveieeeeen.
Municipal Water Ulility ..o
Municipal Communications Utility ..............

Combined revenues

Expenditures/expenses:

Municipal Electric Utility .................ococcceeee.
Municipal Water Ulility ......cooveeeeeveeee
Municipal Communications Ufility ..............

Combined expenditures/expenses

Net

Combined beginning net assets ..................

COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Accrual

Cash Basis Adjustments  Accrual Basis
$11,612,324 § (783,744) $10,828,580
1,004,784 190,966 1,285,750
5,464 667 842 210 6,306,877
18,171,775 248 432 18,421 207
16,260,229 (4,978,187) 11,282,042
1,106,739 {24,405) 1,082,334

4 885,445 {558.845) 4,326 600
22252413 {5,561, 437) 16,690,976
(4,080,638} 5,810,869 1,730,231
29,804,338 22,013,094 51,817,433
$25723,701 $27,823.963  $53,547.664

See Accompanying Independent Auditers' Report
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, ICWA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - BUDGETARY REPORTING

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

NOTE 1

The budgetary comparison is presented as Required Supplementary Information in accordance
with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 41 for governments with
significant budgetary perspective differences resulting from not being able to present budgetary
comparisons for each individual utility.

In accordance with the Code of lowa, Spencer Municipal Ulilities annually adopts a combined
budget on the ¢ash basis for the Municipal Electric Utility, Municipal Water Utility, and Municipal
Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa following required public notice and hearing.
The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statuterily prescribed
pracedures. Encumbrances are not recognized and appropriations lapse at year-end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of disbursements, known
as functions, not by fund. These functions are public safety, public works, health and social
services, culture and recreation, community and economic development, general government,
debt service, capital projects and business type activities. All Ufility disbursements are included
in business type activities function and are required to be budgeted. During the year, one
budget amendment increased budgeted disbursements by $2,198,807. This budget
amendment is reflected in the final budgeted amounts.

NOTE 2

The receipts and disbursements, including capital outlays, on the cash basis for each Utility are
summarized as follows:

Municipal Municipal Municipal
Electric Water Communications
Ulility Utility Utility Combined

[T =T o1 $11.612,324 & 1,094,784 § 5464667 518,171,775
Disbursements, including capital outlay .. 16,260,229 1,106,739 4 885 445 22252413
Excess (deficit) of receipts over

disbursements {(4,647.905) {11,959) 579,222 (4,080,638}
Beginning netassets .........cocceeeeeevciicreeene 24 526,302 4,108,749 1,168,288 28,804,339
ENDING NET ASSETS $19.878.397 $4.007.794 § 1747510 $25723.701

53



WinteERr, StavE & Co,, LLP
anﬁfizc{ Publin G4aaoun.‘:arz£1

1316 Wesl 15th Street 1004 21st Street #9
PO Box |75 F.O. Box 187
Spencer, Towa 51301-0175 Milford, [owa 51351
Phone 712-262-3117 Phone 712-338-2488
FAX 712-262-3159 FAX 712-338-2510}

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Water Utility
Spencer, 1A 51301

We have audited the financial statements of the Municipal Water Utility of the City of Spencer,
lowa {the Utility) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, and have issued our report
thereon dated March 20, 2006. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility’s internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financtal reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components dees not reduce to a relafively low
level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in
relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be defected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters invelving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider
to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility's financial statements are
free of material misstaternent, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Governmental
Auditing Standards.
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Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility's operations for the year
ended December 31, 2005 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures
performed during our audit of the financial statements of the Utility. Since our audit was based
on tests and samples, not all fransactions that might have had an impact on the comments were
necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended
to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials
and employees of Spencer Municipal Utilities, the citizens of the City of Spencer and other
parties to whom Spencer Municipal Utilities may report. This report is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

(Jodo. LarC 2T

March 20, 2006
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SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Partl: Findings Related to the Financial Statements

No matters were noted.

56



PartIl:

1I-A-05

1I-B-05

1I-C-05

1I-D-05

II-E-05

II-F-05

II-G-05

II-H-05

II-1-05

SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has been adopted by
the Board. The maximum deposil amounts stated in the resclution were not exceeded
during the year ended December 31, 2005.

Certified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended December 31, 2005 did not
exceed the amounts budgeted in the business type activities function.

Questionable Expenditures - We noted no expenditures that we believe may not meet
the requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General's opinion dated
April 25, 1979.

Travel Expenses - No expenditures of Utility's money for travel expenses of spouses of
Utility's officials or employees were noted.

Business Transactions - No business fransactions betwean the Utility and Utility
officials or employees were noted.

Bond Coveraqge - Surety bond coverage of Spencer Municipal Utilities' officials and
employees is in accordance with statulory provisions. The amount of coverage should
be reviewed annually to insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Board Minutes - No fransactions were found thal we believe should have been
approved in the Board minutes but were not.

Revenue Bonds - As of December 31, 2005, the Utility is in compliance with all
significant financial requirements related to its Water Revenue Bond, Series 2001,

Deposits and Investments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and

investment provisions of Chapter 12(B) and 12(c} of the Code of lowa and the Utility's
investrment policy were noted.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA



WINTH:ER, STAVE & CD., LLP
cuﬂfisd Pubifia HFocountants

1316 West 1810 Sireel 1004 21s1 Sireet £4
P.O.Box 175 O, Box 187
Spencer, lowa 51301-0175 Milford, Iowa 51351
Phone 712-262-3117 Phone 712-338-24988
FAX 712-262-3159 FAX 712-338-2510

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Communications Utility
Spencer, IA 51301

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of the Municipal Communications Utility of
the City of Spencer, lowa (the Utility) as of December 31, 2005 and the related statements of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets (deficit) and cash flows for the year then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility's management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial staterments based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we ptan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Ulility as of December 31, 2005, and the respective changes in its
financial position and ils cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 20, 2006 on our consideration of the Utility's internal control over financial reporting and
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to deseribe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 60
through 62 and 73 through 75 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management,
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

{SoesblobC T

March 20, 2006
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The purpose of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to provide the reader with
an introduction to the financial statements. Our discussion and analysis of the Municipal
Communications Utility (Utility) of the City of Spencer, Iowa’s financial performance provides
an overview of the Utility’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2005.

The following information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the
accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this section.

2005 Financial Highlights

Total assets increased by approximately $950,000 which was primarily attributable to an
increase in the cash balance, an increase in the accounts receivable balances related to increased
telephone traffic, and larger carrier access billings. Total liabilities decreased by approximately
$1,030,000 due to payments on debt service and the timing of other accounts payable.

Total net assets increased by $1,980,277, the result of the utility operations.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The balance sheet includes the Utility’s assets and liabilities and provides information about the
nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to creditors
(liabilities).

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets reports all revenues and expenses
incurred during the fiscal year.

The statement of cash flows presents cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net changes in cash
resulting from operating, nencapital financing, capital and related financing and investing
activities.

The notes to the financial statements provide the required disclosures and other information that
is necessary to give the reader a complete understanding of the data provided in the statements.
The notes present information about the Utility’s accounting policies, material risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies and subsequent events.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Condensed Financial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and indicators for
management, monitoring, and planning.

Condensed Balance Sheets

CUTTENL ASSELS +eveeereeeecriereerieeniae s e
Capital assets - net of depreciation ...
Noncwrent assets ....oovececeeveecvvcececerinnns

Total assets

Current liabilities .....ccooeeevveeieeeieee e
Long-term debt .......cooovervcricrcecvean

Total liabilities

...................................

...................................

...................................

Investments in capital assets - net of related debt .................

Unrestricted .....oooeeeveeieeeee e

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assefs

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Cable televisSiOn revenue ......occecceeeeenn
Telephone revenue ...
Data services Tevenue ..........ccceeivieenes

Total operating revenue

System operation and maintenance ....
Depreciation and amertization ...........
Customer service and administration .

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Interest MCOME .covvrrevrcercercenenereenns
Interest expense .....cciiciiiiincniiinnnans
Other income (expense) - net..............

...................................

...................................

Total non-operating income (expense)

Change in net assets

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year

Net assets (deficit), end of year
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2005 2004
$ 3,179,644 $ 1,958,590
5,628,596 6,072,126
207,705 34,773
3 9,015,945 58,065,489
$ 646,053 $ 1,171,874
6,546,000 7,050,000
7,192,053 B.221.874
(887,427) (943,101)
2,711,319 786,716
1.823.892 {156,385)
3 9.015.945 £ 8.065.489

eficit

2005 2004
$ 896,456 $ 806,118
4,414,616 3,662,453
597.168 432,499
5,908,240 4.901.070
2,477,795 2,064,225
905,617 775,268
569.579 714,577
3,952,991 3,554,070
1,955,249 1,347.000
51,064 12,685
(314,127) (325,484)
288.091 {6.895)
25,028 (315.694)
1,980,277 1,027,306
(156.385) (1.183.691)
3 1,823,892 § (156,385)



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - Continued

Financial Analysis
The Utility’s total assets increased by approximately $950,000 during 2005.

The Utility’s gross revenues increased in 2005 compared to 2004 by approximately $1,007,000
or 20.53%.

Total operating expenses increased in 2005 compared to 2004 by approximately $399,000
because of increased expenses for cable programming, telephone long distance and due to an
increase in the number of subscribers. Depreciation and amortization expense also increased by
approximately $130,000. Customer service and administration expense was lower due to payroll
overheads being charged to the respective payroll account instead of administration expense.

Total operating income generated in 2005 was approximately $1,955,000 compared to
approximately $1,347,000 in 2004.

The Utility’s net assets increased $1,980,277 for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to
an increase of $1,027,306 for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Budgetary Highlights

In accordance with the Code of Towa, Spencer Municipal Utilities annually adopts a combined
budget on the cash basis for the Municipal Electric Utility, Municipal Water Utility, and
Mounicipal Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, Iowa.

The original adopted combined budget for 2005 was approximately $25,500,000. This was an
increase of $12,600,000 over the previous year budget. The budget was amended once during
2005 to allow for increased expenditures of approximately $2,200,000.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Net capital assets decreased by approximately $448,000 due to depreciation expense being
greater than capital purchases for the year ended December 31, 2005.

During 2005, principal of $504,000 was repaid on a note payable to the Municipal Electric
Utility, resulting in a balance of $6,546,000 at December 31, 2005.

Economic Factors
The Utility continues to see positive growth in subscriber base and also net income. The Utility
will be faced with increased costs of operating due to cable programming contracts.

Contacting the Utility’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to present our citizens, customers, and creditors with a general
overview of the Ultility’s finances and operating activities. If you have any questions or require
additional information please contact the Finance Supervisor, 712 Grand Ave, PO Box 222,
Spencer, Towa 51301.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY

OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA

BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2005

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) ..
Accounts receivable - net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $25,000 ..
Consumer deposﬁs
Materials and supplles |nventory

T 1) ] ) £ e e e e

Unbilled usage .
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

UNAMORTIZED DEFERRED COSTS ...

CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 3):
Plant in service ..........

Less accumulated depreclatlon
CAPITAL ASSETS - NET

LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE - NICP (Note 5} .......cccevmenminininmnninn

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

AccoUNtS PAYabIe ..o e
Accrued wages, vacations, and benefits .......oocveeeoiinnnn
CONSUMET dEPOSIES ..vvveeeiiiiei et e e s e e e
Accrued expenses ..........

TOTAL CURRENT LIAB[LITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (Note 8) ... e

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {Note 11) ...ccccvvveereneeene
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:

Invested in capital assets - net of related debt ..o

Unrestricted ... e ——————

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See Accompanying Notes e Financial Statements
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$ 1,747,510

995,036
34,034
45,614
91,395
266,055
$ 3,179,644
20,977
8,777,190
3,148,594
5,628,596
177,728
$ 9,015,045
$ 546,068
51,865
34,034
14,086
$ 646,053
6,546,000
7,192,053
(887,427)
2711319
1,823,892
$ 9015945



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY

OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

REVENUE:

Cable system revenue ..........cccc v e
Telephone system revVenUE ... e anaa
Data SErvICES MVENLIE ... e e e e e e e e e ra e

TOTAL REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Plant specific and programming ..........cccccovmimnienen e
Depreciation and amortization .........cccceeeeriiiiimenceee

Customer services and marketing ..
General and administrative .
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
Miscellaneous income .

Economic development payments .............................................
Transfers to City in lieu of property 1axes ...
[0 G =TT T Tele 1a g 1= SO R

Interest expense .........

TOTAL NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE) - NET

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT} - DECEMBER 31, 2004 ...

NET ASSETS - DECEMBER 31, 2005

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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$ 896,456
4,414,616
597,168

2,477,795
905,617
335,535
234,024

347,573
{40,000)
(19,482)

51,064
(314,127)

$ 5,908,240

3.952,991

1,955,249

25,028
1,880,277

(156,385)

$ 1.823.802



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from CUSIOMETS ... e e e e e e
Cash paid t0 SUPPIETS ....vevieieieie e recerersr e e s es e emrmra e ea e as e rnrreeanens

Cash paid to employees ...
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVIT[ES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Contributions paid for economic development .........ccccovre v rceerveer e,

Transfer to City - in lieu of property tax ...........

NET CASH USED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital asSets ........ccc.oooeceeerererescr e e
Payments received from leasing of facilities ..............cooooiiinii s
Repayment of long-termm debt ...

Interest paid ..

- CASH USED BY CAP]TAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Interest received from INVESIMENES .....ovveeeeeeeeeee e s

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR ......ocooviieriiieee

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

See Accompanying Nales 1o Financial Statements
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$ 5,243,758
(2,695,865)

(541,102)
2,006,791

(40,000)
(19,482)
(59,482)

(457,291)
169,845
(504,000)
(627.705)

{1.419,151)

51,064

51,064

579,222

1,168,288

$ 1,747,510



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from operations .............
Adjustments to reconcile income from operattons to net cash prowded by
operating aclivities:
Depreciation ..
Amortization .

{Increase) decrease in:

Consumer deposits ..

ACCOUNIS TECEIVADIE ...

Unbilled usage ..........

Materials and supplles mventory

Prepayments ..
Increase (decrease) in

Accounts payable ..

Accrued wages, vacat:ons and benef ts ......................................................

Consumer deposits ..

ACCTUERA BXPEMSES .. iiiviviecrierirsisirrrrrrn s e rs e rnrermra e rasassessasneassassssssessennsnnsses

Total adjustments

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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$ 1,855,249

200,821
4,796

(1,051)
(607,408)
(57,263)
(24,350)
48,238

(204,084)
9,302
1,238

(18,699)

51,542

$ 2,006,791



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2005

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization and Basis of Accounting
The Municipal Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa (Communications
Utility or Utility) operates as an independent unit of the City of Spencer and is
managed, along with the Municipal Electric Utility and the Municipal Water Utility of the
City of Spencer, lowa, by a five member Board of Trustees. The Ulility was formed to
engage in the development and operation of a broadband communications system and
the marketing of related services such as cable television, telephone, and high-speed
data communications. The Utility's rates are set by its governing board.

For financial reporting purposes, the Wility has included all funds. The Utility has also
considered all potential compeonent units for which it is financially accountable, and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
Utility are such that exclusion would cause the Utility’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The Governmentat Accounting Standards Board has set
forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. These criteria
include appointing a voting majority of an crganization's governing body, and (1) the
ability of the Utility to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for the
organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the
Utility. It was determined that the Ulility has no component units.

The Utility is not considered to be a component unit of the City of Spencer for financial
statement purposes. An audit of the City of Spencer for the year ended June 30, 2005
has been completed and is filed under separate cover.

The Utility's financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded
when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the
timing of related cash flows.

In reporting the financial activity of its enterprise fund, the Utility applies all applicable
GASB pronouncements as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before
November 30, 1989, unless these pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research
Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure.

The Utility distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result frarn providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with the Utility's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Ulility are charges to customers
far sales and services. Qperating expenses include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

B. Capital Assets and Depreciation
Capital assets are stated at original cost when first devoted to public service.
Currently, such costs include labor-related expenditures, such as payroll taxes,
pensions, and other fringe benefits and administrative costs for labor related to the
construction of new communications facilities. In addition, net interest costs on
construction debt are capitalized.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciaticn is calculated on the straight-line basis. Current depreciation expense is
approximately 10.26% of the original cost of depreciable communication plant in
service,

The estimated useful lives used to depreciate assels by class are as follows:

Infrastructure 10-15 years
Buildings and improvements 20 years
Equipment 5-7 years

C. Accounts Recelvable
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Utility expects to collect from
outstanding balances. The Ulility provides for probable uncollectible amounts through
a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of
the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after the
Utility has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the
valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. Changes in the valuation
allowance have not been material to the financial statements.

D. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. The average cost method is
used for determining the cost of materials and supplies inventory. Inventories are
recorded as an expenditure or, if applicable, capitalized when consumed.

E. Unamortized Deferred Costs
Cable television system costs allocated during construction of the system are being
amortized using the straight-line method over the expected life of the cable television
plant.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

F. Net Assets
Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the financial
statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the cutstanding balance of
any long-term debt used for acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets
and increased by unspent debt when there are limitations imposed on their use
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of
other governments.

The Utility's policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

G. Income Taxes
The Communications Ulility is exempt from federal and state income taxes because it
is a governmental entity organized under the provisions of Chapter 388 of the Code of
lowa.

H. Revenues and Unbilled Usage
Revenues are based on billing rates, which are applied to customers' consumption of
communrications services. The Utility records estimated unbilled revenue at the end of
accounting periods. Revenues earned, but not yet billed at December 31, 2005,
totaled $266,055.

I. Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Agctual results may differ from those estimates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The ulility's deposits in banks at December 31, 2005 were entirely covered by federal
depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the
Code of lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories
to insure there will be no loss of public funds.

The Utility is authorized by statute and Board of Trustees’ approval to invest public funds in
obligations of the United States government, its agencies, and instrumentalities;
certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at federally insured lowa depository
institutions; and the lowa FPublic Agency Investment Trust.

Interest Rate Risk - The Utility's investment policy limits the investment of operating funds
{funds expected to be expended in the current budget year or within 15 months of receipt)
in instruments that mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may
be invested in investments with maturities longer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be
consistent with the needs and use of the Utilify.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

2, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Continued

The Utility considers all highly liquid investments with an ariginal maturity of three months

or less to be cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows.
3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Beginning  Additions and Deletions and Ending

Balance Transfers (n  Transfers Out Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
(I o % 10,342 $§ 10342
Total capital assets not being
depreciated 10,342 10.342
Capital assels being depreciated:
Infrastructure ........coooeeeeeee, 7,499,751 $ 422,187 7,921,838
Buildings and improvements ... 8,284 5,468 13,750
Equipment ... s 801,522 29,638 831,160
Tolal capital assets being
depreciated 8,309,557 457,281 8,766,848
Less accumulated depreciation .., 2247 773 900,821 3,148,594
Total capital assets being
depreciated - net ..., 6,061,784 {443 530) 5,618,254
Capital assets - net £ 6072126 § (443.530) § $5,628,596

4. TRANSFERS IN LIEU OF PROPERTY TAXES

By resolution of the Board of Trustees, voluntary fransfers in lieu of property taxes are
made to the City of Spencer, lowa. Funds totaling $19,482 were transferred to the City
during 2005,

5. LONG-TERM RECEIVABLE - NICP

During December 2003, the Utility entered into an agreement with Northermn lowa
Communications Partners, L.L.C. (NICP}, an lowa limited liability company, pursuant to
the provisions of Chapter 28E of the Code of lowa. Under this agreement, the Utility,
along with other members of NICP, agrees to pay for the use of a shared switch for routing
certain telecommunications traffic at rates adopted by NICP. The Utility will share in
profits generated or shortfalls incurred through the 28E agreement due to the method used
to determine an annual usage fee paid by NICP to the Utility. An NICP member will be
responsible for maintaining the financial records related to the 28E agreement. The
amount earned but not received by the Utility of $177,728 is recorded as a receivable,
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

6. NONGURRENT LIABILITIES

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the year ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Note payable - Municipal

Electric ULNtY .....oovceeecveeecveenne. $7050,000 ___ $504000 $6,546000

The Board of Trustees of the Municipal Electric Utility adopted a resolution on June 14,
1999, pursuant to Section 384.88 City Code of lowa and Rule 2.5(5) of the rules
promulgated by the City Finance Committee, allowing for the advance of funds not to
exceed $8,000,000 to the Municipal Communications Utility to be utilized for the
construction and development of the communication system. These funds are to be
repaid upon demand and bear a 4.5% per annum interest rate. No interest was payable at
December 31, 2005.

7. LEASES

The Utility leases building space from the Water Utility, The expense from the lease is
classified as operating expense. The lease is a monthly lease based on building space
utilized and totaled $1,974 in 2005. No amount is payable at December 31, 2005.

The Utility leases bandwidth, property, and building space from the Electric Utility, The
expense from the lease is classified as operating expense. The lease is a 20-year
variable lease based on bandwidth and space utilized and totaled $386,386 in 2005. No
amount is payable at December 31, 2005.

8. RETIREMENT SYSTEM

IPERS

The Utility contributes to the lowa Public Employees Retirernent System (IPERS) which is
a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of
lowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits which are established by state
statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial
repart that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. The
report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, PO Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa, 50306-
9117.

Pian members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual covered salary and the
Utility is required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements
are established by State statute. The Utility’s contributions to IPERS for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were $27,831, $32,050, and $26,291, respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each year.
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11.

MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, ICWA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
DECEMBER 31, 2005

RETIREMENT SYSTEM - Continued

Employees Pension Plan

All full-time employees of the Communications Utility who have completed six months of
continuous employment and are 21 years of age are eligible to participate in a Money
Accumulation Pension Plan administered by Copeland Plan Services. The Planis a
defined contribution plan of the money purchase type, intended to qualify under Internal
Revenue Service Code Section 401(a), funded by a combination of employee and
employer contributions. Employees electing to participate are required to contribute 2% of
their compensation, and they may contribute an additional amount of not less than 1% and
not more than 10% of their compensation. The Utility contributes 8% of the employees’
compensation for all employees electing to paricipate.

The Communications Utility’s contribution to the Money Accumulation Pension Plan for
2005 totaled $35,001.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Communications Utility is exposed to various risks of loss relaled to torts; theft,
damage to and destruction of assels; errors and omissions; injuries fo employees; and
natural disasters. These risks are covered by the purchase of commercial insurance. The
Utility assumes liability for any deductible and claims in excess of coverage limitations.
Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any
of the past three fiscal years.

RELATED PARTIES

The Electric Utility, Water Utility, and Communications Ulility of the City of Spencer, lowa
exchange services in the normal course of business.

Two members of the Board of Trustees hold non-conirolling interests in a financial
institution where the Ulility maintains cash balances.

Additional related party items are included in Notes 5, 6, and 7.

COMMITMENTS

The Utility has committed to provide annual support of $28,000 to the Clay Regional
Events Center during 2006 and 2007. The support is contingent on the Events Center
receiving additional support from other area sources.

During 2005, the Communication Utility provided a letter of support to continue funding
lowa Great Lakes Corridor of Opportunity at a level of $12,500 per year for four years.
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS AND
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CASH BASIS)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Receipts:

Municipal Electric Ufility ......c.ccoceeveeciienencnen.
Municipal Water Utility ...........cccoceiiiiiinens
Municipal Communications Wtility .................

Combined receipts

Disbursements, including capital cutlay:

Municipal Electric UGt ............ooccomeevevernnn..

Municipal Water Utility ................

Municipal Communications Utility .................

Combined disbursements, including
capital outlay

Transfers i .....ooveeeeeeee e ceee e rm e
Transfers out ... s

Transfers - net

Combined excess {deficif} of recsipts
over disbursements

Combined beginning net assets .......c...coovevenee

COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS

Total revenues and transfersin ......................
Total expenditures and transfers out ..............

Excess (deficit) of receipts over disbursements

Beginning balance - January 1 ....................,

Ending balance - December 31

Budgeted Final to
Armounts Actual
Actual Final Variance
$11,612,324
1,094,784
—5.464.667
18,171,775 $17,837,918 $ 333,857
16,260,229
1,106,739
4,885,445
22,252,413 27,692,992 5,440,579
1,700,000 (1,700,000}
(1,700,000) 1,700,000
(4,080,638) (9,855,074) 5,774,436
29.804.339 32,449,450 {2,845.111)
$25,723.701 $22,504,376  § 3,129,325

Qriginal Final
Budget Budget
$18,201,830 $19,537,918
27,194,185 29,392,992
(8,902,355) {9.855,074)
32.449.450 32,449,450

$23.547,000 $22,594,376

See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Reporl
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY

OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Revenues:
Municipal Electric Utility ..
Municipal Water Utility ..
Municipal Communlcatlons Ut|||ty
Combined revenues

Expendilures/expenses:
Municipal Electric Ulility ..
Municipal Water Utility ..

Municipal Commumcatlons Utlllty ..............

Combined expenditures/expenses

Net

Combined beginning net assets .........ccceeeeenee

COMBINED ENDING NET ASSETS

Accrual
Cash Basis Adiustments  Accrual Basis

$11,612,324 $ (783,744) $10,828,580
1,004,784 190,966 1,285,750
5,464,667 842.210 6,306,877
18,171,775 249432 18,421,207

16,260,229 (4,978,187) 11,282,042
1,106,738 (24,405) 1,082,334
4,885 445 (658,845) 4,326,600

22,252,413 (5,561,437) 16,690,976

(4,080,638) 5,810,869 1,730,231

29,804,339 22,013,094 51.817.433

$25,723.701  §27,823.963  $53.547,664

Seo Accompanying Independent Auditors’ Report



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
OF THE CITY OF SPENCER, IOWA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - BUDGETARY REPORTING

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

NOTE 1

The budgetary comparison is presented as Required Supplementary Information in accordance
with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 41 for governments with
significant budgetary perspective differences resulfing from not being able to present budgetary
comparisons for each individual utitity.

In accordance with the Code of lowa, Spencer Municipal Ulilities annually adopts a combined
budget on the cash basis for the Municipal Electric Utility, Municipal Water Utility, and Municipa!
Communications Utility of the City of Spencer, lowa following required public notice and hearing.
The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily prescribed
procedures. Encumbrances are nol recognized and appropriations lapse at year-end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon nine major classes of disbursements, known
as functions, not by fund. These functions are public safety, public works, health and social
services, culture and recreation, community and econamic development, general government,
debt service, capital projects and business type activities. All Utility disbursements are included
in business type activities function and are required fo be budgeted. During the year, one
budget amendment increased budgeted disbursements by $2,198,807. This budget
amendment is reflected in the final budgeted amounts.

NOTE 2

The receipts and disbursements, including capital outlays, on the cash basis for each Utility are
summarized as follows:

Municipal Municipal Municipal
Electric Water Communications
Ltiliky Ultility Utility Combined
Receipls .o, $11,612,324 § 1,094,784 § 5,464,667 518,171,775

Disbursements, including capital outlay .. 16,260,229 1,106,739 4,885 445 22,252,413

Excess {deficit) of receipts over

disbursements (4,647,905) (11,955) 579,222 (4,080,638)
Beginning net assets ...........c.ceoveniienn 24,526 302 4,109,749 1,168,288 23,804,339
ENDING NET ASSETS $10,878,397 $.4.097,794 $ 1,747,510 $25.723.701
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REFORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED CN AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Spencer Municipal Utilities - Municipal Communications Utility
Spencer, |A 51301 '

We have audited the financial statements of the Municipal Communications Utility of the City of
Spencer, lowa (the Utility} as of and for the year ended December 31, 2005, and have issued
our report thereon dated March 20, 2006. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Gontrol Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing cur audit, we considered the Utiiity's internal control over financial
reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the intemnal control cver
financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial reporting that might be
material weaknesses. A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or
operaticn of one or more of the internal control compeonents does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in
relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
periad by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider
to be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of oblaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with cerlain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Governmental
Auditing Standards.
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Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility's operations for the year
ended December 31, 2005 are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures
performed during our audit of the financial statements of the Utility. Since our audit was based
on tests and samples, not all transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were
necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended
to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials
and employees of Spencer Municipal Utilities, the citizens of the City of Spencer and other
parties to whom Spencer Municipal Utilities may report. This report is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone cther than these specified parties.

(ol feeC THT

March 20, 2006
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SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Partl: Findings Related to the Financial Statements

No matters were noted.
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SPENCER MUNICIPAL UTILITIES
MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS - Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005

Other Findings Related to Required Statufory Reporting

Official Depositories - A resolution naming official depositories has been adopted by
the Board. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the resolution were not exceeded
during the year ended December 31, 2005.

Cenrtified Budget - Disbursements during the year ended December 31, 2005 did not
exceed the amounts budgeted in the business type activities function.

Questionable Expenditures - No expenditures were noted which did not meet the
requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General's opinion dated
April 25, 1979.

Travel Expenses - No expenditures of Utility's money for travel expenses of spouses of
Utility's officials or employees were noted.

Business Transactions - Business transactions between the Ulility and Utility officials
or employees are detailed as follows:

Name, Title and Business Connection Transaction Description Amount

Tom Howe, Board Member
Part owner of H & N Chevrolet Maintenance & Repairs $ 1,351

In accordance with Chapter 362.5(10) of the Code of lowa, the transactions with the
Board Member do not appear to represent a conflict of interest since the transactions
were less than $1,500 during the year.

Bond Coverage - Surety bond coverage of Spencer Municipal Utilities' officials and
employees is in accordance with statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should
be reviewed annually o insure that the coverage is adequate for current operations.

Board Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been
approved in the Board minutes but were not.

Revenue Bonds/Notes - No revenue bonds/notes were issued fo the Utility.

Deposits and [nvestments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and
investment provisiens of Chapter 12(B) and 12(c} of the Code of lowa and the Ulility's
investment policy were noted.

Telecommunication Services - No instances of noncompliance with Chapter 388.10 of
the Code of lowa were noted.
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